
BELGRADE CITY COUNCIL

MEETING MINUTES

COUNCIL CHAMBERS

July 18, 2016
7: 00 PM

Mayor Russell Nelson called the meeting to order.  Council Members in attendance were: Brad
Cooper, Anne Koentopp, Jim Simon, Kristine Menicucci and Mark Criner .

Others in attendance were:  City Attorney Richard Ramler, Fire ChiefRon Lindroth, Fire
Marshall Bruce Hennequin, Planning Director Jason Karp, Finance Director Diane Eagleson, Jay
Josephs, Ed Roe, Wade Pehl, Linda Rabel, Debra Youngberg, Dennis Foreman, Robert Poole, Lori
McAllister, Dennis Worman and Michael Tucker.

ACTION: Council Member Menicucci moved to excuse Council Member Smith. Council

Member Cooper seconded the motion. All voted aye, motion carried unanimously.

APPROVED MINUTES OF THE July 5, 2016 Council Meeting.

ACTION: Council Member Menicucci moved to approve the minutes of the July 5, 2016
Council meeting. Council Member Criner seconded the motion. All voted aye, motion carried
unanimously.

PUBLIC FORUM

Mayor Nelson called for public comment.

Jay Josephs, a builder residing in Bozeman, stated that he had construction and remodel
projects in progress within the Belgrade area. He complimented the city employees that he had come
into contact with during the course ofhis work. Mr. Josephs requested the Council to consider
changing the ordinance that all new buildings require asphalt paving for the parking area. He wanted
there to be an allowance for variance. Josephs referred to a specific project involving the remodel of an
8- unit apartment building.  He stated that the parking area is already built but he received a notice that
it does not conform to the current paving codes. He suggested that some variance and alternatives be
allowed in order to upgrade the image of Belgrade. Josephs explained the river rock type surface he

had installed on the driveway at his current project.

General discussion followed regarding the difference in cost, compaction, drainage,
maintenance and how it would stand up to plowing in the winter.  City Planning Director Karp
confirmed that variances are currently allowed only in the case of a hardship, otherwise the Council
would need to amend the code and the current ordinance. Karp also suggested that this could be
discussed with the Public Works Director and the City Engineer.

Council thanked Mr. Josephs for his efforts to improve the appearance of his properties in

Belgrade and for bringing up his concerns.

Page 1 of 8



Mayor Nelson called 2 more times for public comment. There being none, the public forum
was closed.

PUBLIC HEARING• Minor subdivision of Mavfair Subdivision

Planning Director Karp reviewed the application and noted that Gaston Engineering was
working with the owners of the property. They proposed to abandon part of Mayfair Drive to add
some space to the existing park. The applicant is also working with the ditch owner. There are no new j
streets proposed, however, the turnaround would need to be extended on the west end of Meadow
Circle. Prescott Park is undeveloped at this time. No new major infrastructure will be needed and this
is considered an in-fill project. The Planning Board recommended approval of this application with

the conditions as stated.     

Dennis Worman, Gaston Engineering, spoke on behalfof the applicant and stated that they
agree with the conditions as stated.  Council expressed they are happy to see these proposed
improvements.

Robert Poole, residing at 720 Cheery, questioned who will maintain the access thruway where
it comes across Cheery Drive. He currently takes it upon himself to maintain this walk way to the
park.  He asked if it would be paved or if gravel would be properly applied. The current condition of
this access is not up to expectations.

Karp explained that when Greenview Subdivision was developed, it included specification of a
3 foot wide by 50 yard long access pathway to the park. It was intended to be a gravel path. Karp
confirmed there is no homeowners association and the City does not maintain it. Barkley commented
that this is not really connected to the new subdivision, but is a separate item and should be improved
when Prescott Park comes up to be developed. Barkley noted this is a bit different than maintaining
sidewalks and he would bring this concern up to the Public Works Director.

Robert Poole stated that a lot of material is being dropped in and he would like someone to
come look at it.  Council also said there is a walkway near Lewis & Clark similar to this. Discussion

followed about whether to make these walkways into actual sidewalks.  It was noted that there were 2
easements shown on the subdivision plat, but according to Mr. Poole, the one next to 720 Cheery was
the only one being used.

Mayor Nelson called 2 more times for public comment and then closed the public hearing.
Council thanked Mr. Poole for taking the time to care for and maintain the easement near his
residence.

ACTION:  Council Member Koentopp moved to approve the Preliminary Plat of the
Mayfair Minor Subdivision—Meadow Circle, with the conditions listed. Council Member

Cooper seconded the motion. All voted aye, motion carried unanimously.

REPORTS

Mavor' s Report—the Mayor had nothing to report

Page 2 of 8



Citv Attornev' s Report—the City Attorney had nothing to report.

Fire Chiefs Renort

Fire Chief Lindroth reported on the successful search for a new Fire Marshall. He introduced
Bruce Hennequin, coming from North Carolina, as the new Fire Marshall.

Bruce Hennequin, Central Valley Fire District Fire Marshall, addressed the council and
summarized his previous experience. He felt strongly about the need for ongoing education and
looked forward to working with city staff. Council welcomed him to our area.

Chief Lindroth proceeded to review several statistics over the past year. He noted that
improvements are largely a result of increased training. He reviewed the movement toward hands- only
CPR and the use of defibrillators.  Citizen intervention is encouraged and Lindroth commended our
citizens for their willingness to step in and intervene in order to save lives. He also reviewed
Volunteer training and their service to citizens.

The Riverside Fire Station has been remodeled and is now ready to house career staff.
Lindroth noted that 36% of calls occur simultaneously, therefore, there is a need for a second engine
company to come on line. They have applied for grants to fund 3 fire fighters. Financials remain
steady with a slight increase in personnel cost. The budget is staying at the same level.  Lindroth noted
their hope to open the Dry Creek Station on the old Bootstrap ranch location by April of 2017. There
is also a need to upgrade vehicle extrication equipment due to the way newer vehicles are built and the
kind of materials used for safety reasons.

Lindroth noted they are still within the design phase for Fire Station One' s replacement. The I

preliminary agreement with the Airport is in the works.  Lindroth planned to attend a design
conference in North Carolina in the Fall of 2016 for further assistance.  Long term relationship plans
are continuing to be explored between CVFD and the City.  Lindroth noted that Volunteer recruitment
is on hold right now as they are revamping these programs. The plan is to focus on outdoor fire attack
first, then put the volunteer through the interior training. If they stick with it for one year, this will
enable more effective use of resources.

Citv Manager' s Report

City Manager Barkley reported on a draft ordinance regarding Accessory Dwelling Units under
consideration by the City-County Planning Board.  Barkley expected it to come before the Council for
review in the near future.

Barkley provided a list of general information and flow chart regarding the process involved in
annexation of a special improvement district. He noted it had been quite some time since this has come
up.

Barkley reviewed a request received by the City to allow a display of Fireworks on July 23rd lri

honor of the 90' Birthday of a prominent local resident, Val Kountz. ' The display would be at the

Page 3 of 8



home located at 315 Quaws Blvd and they expected it to start after dark, and last about 10 minutes.
Class C fireworks would be used and had been reviewed and approved by the Fire Department.
Barkley requested the Council to consider approval by motion.

ACTION: Council Member Menicucci moved to allow a Fireworks display at 315 Quaw
Blvd as requested by the Kountz family, on July 23rd. Council Member Criner seconded the

motion. All voted aye, motion carried unanimously.

General discussion followed regarding recent Letters to the Editor appearing in the local
newspaper about fireworks in Belgrade and citizen concerns. Barkley stated they are provided with a
copy of the current regulations as they are requested.

Barkley reported plans to consider granting additional enforcement authority for the Fire
Marshall so he can actually cite someone to appear in court as a compliance tool.

Barkley reported on upcoming road closures on Broadway south of Main for construction and
improvement to the railroad crossing with proper notices sent out.  It was noted that there may be a
small increase for the city' s part of the costs associated with these improvements. General discussion
followed on other crossings related to sidewalks and grades.

Barkley reported that asbestos removal work will start on the 600 block of Missoula first week
of August. It should take about a week and then demo will take another couple of days. Finally the
removal of all foundations will make a smooth grade possible.

Barkley reported that the new Point person for the skate park is Tiffany Maierle and they are
still planning on breaking ground the first of August.     

DISCUSSION AGENDA

Consider a Proposal from Belgrade Chamber of Commerce to Construct a pavilion/bandstand in
Lewis & Clark Park

I

Debra Youngberg, Executive Director of the Chamber of Commerce, suimnarized the history
behind this request.  She noted that funds had been raised several years ago and there is currently

1, 800 dedicated to the project ofbuilding a bandstand. The Fall Festival will take place on Sept 10'
this year which includes fund raising raffle.  The bandstand project has been slated for the fund raising
effort. Youngberg noted her recent discussions with City Staff in Public Works and Planning/Building
regarding a structure with electricity in Lewis & Clark Park in order to have music performances and

theatrical plays, with lights and sound.  She noted this would also be a nice addition to the park for
weddings and similar events. A suggested location was the mound, facing toward the Fire Station.
They plan would include raising funds through this year' s Fall Festival raffle. The Chamber would
sell the raffle tickets and add those funds to the$ 1, 800 already being held. Youngberg stated there are
also some in-kind donations lined up from lumber suppliers and the project would be built with
volunteer labor.  She provided a photo to show the design and compared their planned bandstand to a
similar platform in Manhattan' s park.  It would have railing, but it would probably not have a back on

Page 4 of 8



it as shown. General discussion followed regarding the location and proximity to the Skate Park and
the Splash Park. Design and exact location would be brought back to Council for final approval. 

i

Mayor Nelson called for public comment. There was none.

ACTION:  Council Member Koentopp moved to approve moving forward with the design
and raising funds for a Bandstand in Lewis & Clark Park, with final plans and proposed I

location to come back before Council for approval. Council Member Menicucci seconded the
motion. All voted aye, motion carried unanimously.

Consider authorizing the Citv Manager to sign all documents related to extending and
expanding the contract with the Montana Department of Commerce on behalf of Bacterin
International

City Manager Barkley explained creation of at least 12 new positions under the original plan.
Now there are additional funds available so Bacterin plans to fund 13 additional positions, if approved.
A letter of support is needed from the City, along with an amended application including a total of 25
positions. Barkley reported that an audit was recently conducted by the Montana Department of
Commerce for all required documentation of activities thus far on this job creation grant. The on-site
audit was clean with no findings and all files were found to be in order.

ACTION:  Council Member Menicucci moved to approve authorizing the City Manager
to sign documents related to extending and expanding the contract with the Montana
Department of Commerce on behalf of Bacterin International. Council Member Koentopp
seconded the motion. All voted aye, motion carried unanimously.

Consider Discussion regardin$ Preliminarv Budget for Fiscal Year Endin June 2017

City Manager Barkley noted this as the beginning of the budget process, including a summary
of the City' s outstanding debt, and a review of specific funds shown on a cash flow sheet.  Barkley
noted the positive effect of Municipal Services Levy funds. The Library has already had their budget
approved, using some of their reserves in order to keep their staffing levels consistent.  He noted the
goal to maintain appropriate reserves in several funds as required. Another list provided was the key
six funds for major purchases, projects and service costs.

The Court remodel will tentatively start first week of August. It was recommended that the
council meetings be held in the Library Community Room while the court offices are under
renovation.

Council asked about the number ofpolice cars being stored at the shop yard, if they are
working and being used as backups or, if they are not being used, will they be auctioned.  Council
expressed concern that people see them and think we have too many vehicles, and then we purchase a
new vehicle. Council also asked if they could be parked in various locations to inspire citizens to
practice safer driving. Barkley noted that he would ask Police Chief Clark to address this concern in
his upcoming report at a future meeting.

Page 5 of 8



Barkley noted plans to convert the Jet Rodding equipment to include a l0yd dump bed and a
blade on the front, which would provide a heavier plow. This plan is in this budget year. The sewer
vacuum equipment must be owned or leased. We have no choice for liability purposes as well as
proper maintenance of our sewer system.  The cost is over$ 400,000 but very necessary. We also need
updated camera equipment to perform inspections of our infrastructure.

Barkley noted this budget information did not require any action at this time but he appreciated
hearing the Council' s questions and concerns. Barkley stated that the City of Belgrade is in better
financial shape as compared to 2 years ago, with the municipal services levy' s help. He had suggested
a base wage increase at 2%, but Barkley noted that some specific positions are being reviewed for
market value adjustments.

Barkley reported the recent resignation of 2 utility billing/ administrative clerks in the Finance
Department. 2 new individuals are scheduled to begin work in these positions on July 20'.  The

position ofPolice Support Services Tech has also been filled as of last week.  Open positions include
one Library Circulation Clerk and one Police Officer.    

Council expressed the need for replacement parts and repairs to playground equipment at Lewis
Clark Park. New playground equipment would be desirable as well as added features to the splash

park.  General discussion followed regarding formation of a park district and/ or a mill levy just for
I

park improvements. Barkley noted programs that other cities have successfully formed by including
the whole school district in order to support parks throughout the city.      

Mayor Nelson called for public comment. There was none.

Consider Annual Performance Evaluation of the Citv Manaser i

Mayor Nelson summarized the evaluation: 
I

Individual characteristics— 4.46

Professionalism— 4.37

Relations with counci14.20

Policy execution 4.32
Reporting 4.37
Citizen relations 4.37

Staffing 4.23
Supervision 4.46

Fiscal management 4.49

Overall Score 4.38 out of a possible 5. 00

Mayor Nelson felt it was a good report. Barkley was pleased with the overall scores and noted
there is always room for improvement. Barkley noted enjoying his work, but it has been a challenge.
He intends to continue the relationship. Nelson recommended following the same suggested wage
adjustment to be shown in the upcoming budget as approved. Barkley noted that he would like a
possible adjustment in the area of deferred compensation toward retirement which could be considered

Page 6 of 8



along with the final budget.  Council commended Barkley and stated being glad ofhis presence. They
agreed to consider a motion for pay adjustment along with the approval of a final budget.

Mayor Nelson called for public comment. There was none.

CONSENT AGENDA

Pledged Securities for Quarter Ending June 30, 2016

General discussion followed regarding the upcoming change when First Interstate bank
assumes control over Valley Bank of Belgrade in August of this year.  Barkley noted the possibility of
exploring other banking options by putting out a request for proposals.

ACTION: Council Member Koentopp moved to approve Pledged Securities for quarter
ending June 30, 2016. Council Member Menicucci seconded the motion. All voted aye, motion
carried unanimously.

FOR YOUR INFORMATION

Council Member Criner asked for information on the ordinance regarding the condition of
yards and trash not being removed. Barkley said he would put together a packet for council' s
information. Koentopp asked if there was a limit on the number of vehicles allowed per residence.      

i

Council Member Menicucci reported that the Design Committee on the interior of the Library
is about finished, has been a great experience and a good use of funds.  Foundation and Board of
trustees are getting together to work on grants to have a professional fund raising effort.     

Council Member Simon noted that a stretch of Idaho had stop signs on east/west traffic and
contractor trailers are parking by the stop signs so you can' t see properly because they are parked too
close to the intersection. Barkley suggested having the CSO talk to the contractors to observe the 10
foot requirement. Nearest cross street was Gallatin, Idaho and near that area.

Council Member Koentopp reported on attending the monthly fire meeting.  She noted their
report that the addition of Station 7 in Dry Creek will result in everyone being within 5 miles of a fire
station all over the district.

Council Member Cooper inquired about the Park Board and it was confirmed we have 3
vacancies. He also noted that in the Ferris Addition, there are severe cracks in the pavement where
grass is growing pretty high. He requested this area be sprayed with weed killer. Also the area on
Gallatin and Idaho streets, further along into the older part of the subdivision, weeds are bad where no
pavement overlay had been applied.

Mayor Nelson advised that he would be absent for the first meeting in August. He also
conveyed that Council Member Smith had asked him to bring up the number of days allowed for
setting off fireworks. We are currently allowing 5 days and Smith inquired about reducing it to 3 days.
Mayor Nelson also noted that the area around Town Pump has still not been landscaped properly and

Page 7 of 8



asked City Manager Barkley and Planning Director Karp to follow-up with them and bring a status
report back to Council. He asked if Opticom had made any progress on pending repairs.  Barkley
noted that Opticom had not responded to recent attempts to contact them.

ADJOURN

Council Member Criner moved to adjourn the meeting at 9: 30 p.m.

J    /'     /    , h°    

G l_       '

N       

ussell C. Nelson, Mayor

Attiest: "'    -

i t,;    \`

A :

usan Caldwell, City Clerk

I

Page 8 of 8

I


